
          

 

 

VERONA WALK 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

COLLIER COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

& PUBLIC HEARING 
JULY 20, 2023 

10:00 A.M. 
 

 

 

 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.veronawalkcdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 
AGENDA 

VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
Town Center at Verona Walk 

8090 Sorrento Lane 
Naples, Florida 34114 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING & PUBLIC HEARING 
July 20, 2023 

10:00 a.m. 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 

C. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………………..Page 1 

D. Establish Quorum 

E. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

F. Comments from the Public  

G. Approval of Minutes 

1. May 18, 2023 Regular Board Meeting..............................................................................................Page 2 

H. Public Hearing 

1. Proof of Publication………………………………………………………………………………..Page 6 

2. Receive Public Comments on Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Final Budget 

3. Consider Resolution No. 2023-03 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Final Budget……………Page 7 

I. Old Business 

J. New Business 

1. Discussion Regarding Littoral Plantings 

2. Discussion Regarding Monthly Informational Articles Verona Walk Community 

3. Consider Approval of Napier Sprinkler Proposal for Bridge 1…………………………………….Page 15 

4. Consider Resolution No. 2023-04 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Meeting Schedule………Page 16 

5. Consider Resolution No. 2023-05 – Adopting a Records Retention Policy………………………..Page 18 

K. Administrative Matters 

1. District Attorney Update 

2. District Engineer Update 

3. Field Inspector Update 

4. District Manager Update 

a. Financials……………………………………………………………………………………..Page 22 

L. Board Members Comments 

M. Adjourn 



Page 1



 

Page 1 of 4 
 

VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MAY 18, 2023 
 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The May 18, 2023, Regular Board Meeting of the Verona Walk Community Development District 
(the “District”) was called to order at 10:00 a.m. at the Town Center at Verona Walk located at 8090 
Sorrento Lane, Naples, Florida 34114.  
 
B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
C. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been published in 
the Naples Daily News on October 11, 2022, as part of the District’s Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Meeting 
Schedule, as legally required.  
 
D. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
It was determined that the attendance of the following Supervisors constituted a quorum and it was 
in order to proceed with the meeting: 
 
Chairperson Marilyn Czubkowski Present 
Vice Chairman Peter Monti Present 
Supervisor Pat Clifford Present 
Supervisor Jack Hogan Present 
Supervisor Michael Kurzawski Present 

 
Staff members in attendance were: 
 
District Manager Kathleen Meneely Special District Services, Inc. 

General Counsel Greg Urbancic Coleman Yovanovich Koester 

District Engineer Terry Cole Hole Montes, Inc. 

Field Inspector Bohdan Hirniak  

 
Also present were the following District residents:  Donna Hornsby, Ugene Park, Herb Czeschin and 
Alan Stadt; and Jeff Walker of Special District Services, Inc. (via phone). 
 
E. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
F. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 

Page 2



 

Page 2 of 4 
 

Ms. Hornsby stated that she had sent an email noting her objection to the color of the painted concrete 
structure boxes.  She added that she put the issue out on the VW forum and people agreed with her.  
Ms. Czubkowski stated that Mr. Hirniak chose the color and that it was a project done in conjunction 
with the HOA.  She added that the CDD bought the paint and the HOA provided the labor and 
indicated that samples were brought on location and the thought was it was the identical color as had 
been on the structures previously.  She further stated that the cost was $195 and Mr. Hirniak added 
that the paint would fade and could be repainted if desired.  Mr. Clifford indicated he had no issue 
with the color and Mr. Monti stated that no one had agreed on the colors of Town Center and he 
agreed with Mr. Clifford.  Mr. Hogan noted that opinions will vary and the color will fade by the end 
of the summer, so he agrees with Messrs. Clifford and Monti.  Mr. Monti noted that the Board could 
look at the structures at the end of the summer to see if the color is okay after it fades a bit.  It was 
the consensus of the Board to leave the color “as is” and review the same at the end of the summer. 
 
G. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  April 20, 2023, Regular Board Meeting  
 
The April 20, 2023, Regular Board Meeting minutes were presented for approval.   
  
A motion was made by Mr. Monti, seconded by Mr. Clifford and passed unanimously approving the 
minutes of the April 20, 2023, Regular Board Meeting, as presented. 
 
H. OLD BUSINESS  
 
There were no Old Business items to come before the Board. 
 
I. NEW BUSINESS 
 1.  Discussion Regarding Future Dredging 
 
Ms. Czubkowski advised that at the last HOA meeting there was discussion about littoral plantings 
and questions regarding dredging.  She added that it would not increase the stormwater capacity or 
change the appearance.  Mr. Hirniak added that Bridge #13 was the most obvious location, however 
there is no apparent need for dredging.  Ms. Czubkowski also noted that dredging is done if the lakes 
are unhealthy, which they are not and that the CDD does not believe this is a high priority at this time. 
 
 2.  Discussion Regarding Process to Make Homeowners Responsible for Lake Bank 
Repairs 
 
Ms. Czubkowski questioned the February minutes and the motion diverting repair responsibility to 
the homeowners.  Mr. Monti stated that the ACC adopted the same rules and his understanding was 
that the homeowner would be responsible for burying the pipe during low water and those installations 
would be done after the Board’s repair actions, going forward, would be responsible for their own 
repairs.  Mr. Hirniak indicated that he checked the numbers and there were 5 locations removed from 
the contract issues to Napier for repairs.  Mr. Monti suggested sending a letter to the ACC reinforcing 
this process and he hopes that they will honor their own rules.  Mr. Urbancic advised that the Board 
go through their own rulemaking process and went over the procedures.  Ms. Czubkowski indicated 
she would circle back to the Chair of the ACC and make sure they are following the process before 
the Board considers any future action. 
 

Page 3



 

Page 3 of 4 
 

 3.  Consider Resolution No. 2023-02 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Proposed 
Budget 
 
Resolution No. 2023-02 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE VERONA 
WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT APPROVING A 
PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Mr. Monti stated that the revenues on Pages 10, 11 and 12 did not match.  Mr. Walker advised that 
the ones on Page 10 were correct, but the debt assessment on Page 13 needed updating.   He reminded 
the Board that the revenues take into account fees and early payment discounts.  Discussion ensued 
and it was consensus of the Board to take the Lake Littoral Project down to $6,000.   
 
A motion was made by Mr. Monti, seconded by Mr. Hogan and passed unanimously adopting 
Resolution No. 2023-02, as amended, setting the Public Hearing for July 20, 2023. 
 
J. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 1.  District Attorney Update 
 
Mr. Urbancic gave a legislative update, indicating that the requirement for CDD Supervisors to take 
ethics training had passed.   He also stated that the E-Verify law had passed and the District will have 
to comply going forward.  He further stated he would keep the Board posted on both issues. 
 
 2.  District Engineer Update 
 
There was no District Engineer Update at this time. 
 
 3.  Field Inspector Update 
 
Mr. Hirniak went over the lake bank repairs and the fluctuating lake water levels.  He stated that the 
water quality was good and that Lake 21 had historically had a problem with algae, as it comes and 
goes and rain breaks it up.  Mr. Monti suggested that Solitude test and see what was going on.   
 
 4.  District Manager Update 
 
Ms. Meneely presented the financials.  There were no questions from the Board Members. 
 
Ms. Meneely went over the upcoming meeting schedule.  There was a consensus of the Board to 
cancel the June meeting.  The next meeting is July 20, 2023, which is also the Public Hearing on the 
budget. 
 
K. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 1.  Status of Red Float in the Mail Pond - Hogan 
 

Page 4



 

Page 4 of 4 
 

Mr. Hogan advised that he had spoken with the HOA board members about this issue, who believe it 
belongs to the CDD.  Ms. Czubkowski stated that the float is the HOA’s.  She added the she had 
spoken with the maintenance supervisor and Town Manager that the float is attached to a pipe that 
gets cleaned out and it is used to cool the pumps for the resort pool.  
  
Mr. Clifford suggested the Board find a replacement for his seat due to his health issues, stating that 
he will serve as long as he can.  
 
L. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, the Regular Board Meeting was adjourned 
at 11:01 a.m. on a motion made by Mr. Monti, seconded by Mr. Clifford and that motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ __________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice-Chair 

Page 5



Public Notice

Originally published at naplesnews.com on 07/07/2023

Notice of Public Hearing and Regular Board Meeting of the Verona Walk Community 
Development District  The Board of Supervisors (the Board) of the Verona Walk 
Community Development District (the District) will hold a Public Hearing and Regular 
Board Meeting on July 20, 2023, at 10:00 a.m., or as soon thereafter as can be heard, at 
the Town Center at Verona Walk located at 8090 Sorrento Lane, Naples, Florida 34114. 
The purpose of the Public Hearing is to receive public comment on the Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 Budget of the District. The purpose of the Regular Board Meeting is for the 
Board to consider any other business which may properly come before it. A copy of the 
Budget and/or the Agenda may be obtained from the District's website 
(www.veronawalkcdd.org) or at the offices of the District Manager, 2501A Burns Road, 
Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410, during normal business hours. The meetings are 
open to the public and will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of Florida law. 
Meetings may be continued as found necessary to a time and place specified on the 
record. There may be occasions when one or more Supervisors will participate by 
telephone; therefore, a speaker telephone will be present at the meeting location so that 
Supervisors may be fully informed of the discussions taking place. In accordance with the 
provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special 
accommodations or an interpreter to participate at these meetings should contact the 
District Manager at (561) 630-4922 and/or toll-free at 1-877-737-4922, at least seven (7) 
days prior to the date of the meetings. If any person decides to appeal any decision made 
with respect to any matter considered at this Public Hearing and Regular Board Meeting, 
such person will need a record of the proceedings and such person may need to ensure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made at their own expense and which record 
includes the testimony and evidence on which the appeal is based. Meetings may be 
cancelled from time to time without advertised notice. Verona Walk Community 
Development District www.veronawalkcdd.org 6/30, 7/7/23

Page 6



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-03 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE VERONA WALK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT ADOPTING A FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024 
BUDGET.  

 
 WHEREAS, the Verona Walk Community Development District (“District”) has 
prepared a Proposed Budget and Final Special Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 2023/2024 and 
has held a duly advertised Public Hearing to receive public comments on the Proposed Budget 
and Final Special Assessment Roll; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, following the Public Hearing and the adoption of the Proposed Budget and 
Final Assessment Roll, the District is now authorized to levy non ad-valorem assessments upon 
the properties within the District. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT THAT:  
 
 Section 1. The Final Budget and Final Special Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is approved and adopted, and the assessments 
set forth therein shall be levied. 
 
 Section 2. The Secretary of the District is authorized to execute any and all necessary 
transmittals, certifications or other acknowledgements or writings, as necessary, to comply with 
the intent of this Resolution. 
  

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 20th day of July, 2023. 
 

 
ATTEST: VERONA WALK 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 
 

Page 7



 Verona Walk
  Community Development District

  Final Budget For
  Fiscal Year 2023/2024

  October 1, 2023 - September 30, 2024

Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



2 New Bond Prepayers For 2023/2024 Budget (Phase 2 - Oakmont & Garden)

Page 14



Proposal
Date

7/3/2023

Proposal #

e1118

Name / Address

Veronawalk CDD

Napier Sprinkler, Inc.

4001 Santa Barbara Blvd
#237
Naples, FL 34104

Project

Customer Signature

Total

Description Qty Cost Total

Approximately 40' of the bank of the lake at the northwest corner of
Bridge 1
base rock per yard 6 100.24 601.44
Pallet of sod  Bahia 1 600.53 600.53
Machine Rental 1 500.00 500.00
3 technicians 8 hours 8 180.00 1,440.00

_____________________________________

$3,141.97

Page 15



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-04 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, 
ESTABLISHING A REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL 
YEAR 2023/2024 AND SETTING THE TIME AND LOCATION OF 
SAID DISTRICT MEETINGS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary for the Verona Walk Community Development District 

("District") to establish a regular meeting schedule for fiscal year 2023/2024; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the District has set a regular meeting schedule, 

location and time for District meetings for fiscal year 2023/2024 which is attached hereto and 

made a part hereof as Exhibit “A”. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

OF THE VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, LEE 
COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. The above recitals are hereby adopted. 

 
Section 2. The regular meeting schedule, time and location for meetings for fiscal 

year 2023/2024 which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is hereby adopted and authorized to be 

published. 

 
PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 20th day of July, 2023. 

 

 
ATTEST: VERONA WALK 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:                                                                       By:                
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 
 

Page 16



VERONA WALK 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024 REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE  
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Supervisors of the Verona Walk Community 
Development District will hold Regular Meetings at 10:00 a.m. in the Town Center at Verona Walk 
located at 8090 Sorrento Lane, Naples, Florida 34114, on the following dates: 
 

October 19, 2023 
November 16, 2023 
December 21, 2023 
January 18, 2024 
February 15, 2024 

March 21, 2024 
April 18, 2024 
May 16, 2024 
June 20, 2024 
July 18, 2024 

August 15, 2024 
September 19, 2024 

 
The purpose of the meetings is to conduct any business coming before the Board.  Meetings are open to 
the public and will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of Florida law.  Copies of the Agendas 
for any of the meetings may be obtained from the District’s website or by contacting the District Manager 
at (239) 444-5790 and/or toll free at 1-877-737-4922 prior to the date of the particular meeting.   
 
From time to time one or more Supervisors may participate by telephone; therefore, at the location of 
these meetings there will be a speaker telephone present so that interested persons can attend the meetings 
at the above location and be fully informed of the discussions taking place either in person or by telephone 
communication.  Said meetings may be continued as found necessary to a date and time certain as stated 
on the record. 
 
If any person decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at these meetings, 
such person will need a record of the proceedings and such person may need to insure that a verbatim 
record of the proceedings is made at his or her own expense and which record includes the testimony and 
evidence on which the appeal is based. 
 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special 
accommodations or an interpreter to participate at any of these meetings should contact the District 
Manager at (239) 444-5790 and/or toll free at 1-877-737-4922 at least seven (7) days prior to the date of 
the particular meeting. 
 
Meetings may be cancelled from time to time without advertised notice. 
 
VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
www.veronawalkcdd.org 
 
PUBLISH: NAPLES DAILY NEWS      
   
 

Page 17



RESOLUTION 2023-05 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
PROVIDING FOR THE APPOINTMENT OF A RECORDS 
MANAGEMENT LIAISON OFFICER; PROVIDING THE DUTIES 
OF THE RECORDS MANAGEMENT LIAISON OFFICER; 
ADOPTING A RECORDS RETENTION POLICY; DETERMINING 
THE ELECTRONIC RECORD TO BE THE OFFICIAL RECORD; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the Verona Walk Community Development District (the “District”) is 
a local unit of special-purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, 
Florida Statutes; and  

WHEREAS, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, authorizes the District to adopt rules to 
govern the administration of the District and to adopt resolutions as may be necessary for 
the conduct of District business; and 

WHEREAS, Section 257.36(5), Florida Statutes, requires the District to establish 
and maintain an active and continuing program for the economical and efficient 
management of records and to provide for the appointment of a records management liaison 
officer (“Records Management Liaison Officer”); and 

WHEREAS, the District desires for the Records Management Liaison Officer to be 
an employee of the District or an employee of the District Manager; and 

WHEREAS, the District desires to authorize the District’s records custodian to 
appoint a Records Management Liaison Officer, which may or may not be the District’s 
records custodian; and 

WHEREAS, the District desires to prescribe duties of the Records Management 
Liaison Officer and provide for the assignment of additional duties; and 

WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Supervisors (“Board”) finds that it is in the best 
interests of the District to adopt by resolution a records retention policy (the “Records 
Retention Policy”) for immediate use and application. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE VERONA WALK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, THAT: 

SECTION 1. The District hereby authorizes the District’s records custodian to 
appoint a Records Management Liaison Officer and report such appointment to the 
appropriate State of Florida agencies.  A Records Management Liaison Officer shall be an 
employee of the District or the District Manager.  The Board, and the District’s records 
custodian, shall each have the individual power to remove the Records Management 

Page 18



Liaison Officer at any time for any reason.  Immediately following the removal or 
resignation of a Records Management Liaison Officer, the District’s records custodian 
shall appoint a replacement Records Management Liaison Officer. 

SECTION 2. The duties of the Records Management Liaison Officer shall include 
the following: 

A. Serve as the District’s contact with the Florida Department of State, State 
Library and Archives of Florida; 

B. Coordinate the District’s records inventory;  

C. Maintain records retention and disposition forms;  

D. Coordinate District records management training;  

E. Develop records management procedures consistent with the Records 
Retention Policy, as amended as provided herein;  

F. Participate in the development of the District’s development of electronic 
record keeping systems;  

G. Submit annual compliance statements;  

H. Work with the Florida Department of State, State Library and Archives of 
Florida to establish individual retention schedules for the District, from time 
to time and as may be necessary; and 

I. Such other duties as may be assigned by the Board or the District’s records 
custodian in the future. 

SECTION 3. The District hereby adopts as its Records Retention Policy the 
applicable provisions of Section 257.36(5), Florida Statutes, the rules adopted by the 
Division of Library and Information Services of the Department of State (“Division”) 
pursuant to Section 257.36, Florida Statutes, and the General Records Schedules 
established by the Division.  However, the District will retain certain records longer than 
required by the General Records Schedules established by the Division as set forth in 
Exhibit A.  To the extent the above statute, rules or schedules are amended or supplemented 
in the future, the District’s Records Retention Policy shall automatically incorporate such 
amendment or supplement provided that such automatic amendment shall not reduce the 
retention times set forth in Exhibit A.  The Records Retention Policy shall remain in full 
force and effect until such time as the Board amends the Policy. 

SECTION 4. In accordance with section 668.50, Florida Statutes, and section 
119.01, Florida Statutes, the Board finds that the electronic record shall be considered the 
official record and any paper originals are hereby duplicates which may be disposed of 
unless required to be preserved by any applicable statute, rule or ordinance. 

Page 19



SECTION 5.   If any provision of this resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the 
other provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 

SECTION 6. This Resolution shall become effective upon its passage; shall 
replace, supplant, and supersede any prior policy or resolution of the District regarding 
records retention; and shall remain in effect unless rescinded or repealed.   

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the District Board of Supervisors, this 20th 
day of July, 2023. 

ATTEST:     VERONA WALK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
 
_____________________________  ____________________________________ 
 
Print name: ___________________  Print name: __________________________ 
       Secretary / Assistant Secretary                  Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
Exhibit A:  Amendments to General Records Schedules Established by the Division 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 20



Exhibit A 
 

Amendments to General Records Schedules established by the Division 
 

ADVERTISEMENTS: LEGAL (Item #25) 
The District shall retain mailed and published legal advertisements, and corresponding affidavits, relating to 
proceedings under uniform method of collection of debt assessments permanently.  The District shall retain 
mailed and published legal advertisements, and corresponding affidavits, relating to the levy of assessments 
securing bonds for five (5) fiscal years provided applicable audits have been released, or until three (3) 
calendar years after related bonds are redeemed, whichever is later. 
 
AUDITS: INDEPENDENT (Item #56) 
The District shall retain the record copy of independent audits for ten (10) fiscal years or until three (3) 
calendar years after all related bonds are redeemed, whichever is later. 
 
DISBURSEMENT RECORDS:  DETAIL (Item #340) 
The District shall retain the record copy of disbursement records relating to the use of bonds for five (5) fiscal 
years provided applicable audits have been released or until three (3) calendar years after related bonds are 
redeemed, whichever is later. 
 
DISBURSEMENT RECORDS:  SUMMARY (Item #341) 
The District shall retain the record copy of disbursement records relating to the use of bonds for ten (10) 
fiscal years provided applicable audits have been released or until three (3) calendar years after related bonds 
are redeemed, whichever is later. 
 
FINANCIAL REPORTS:  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ANNUAL REPORTS (Item #107) 
The District shall retain the record copy of disbursement records relating to the use of bonds for ten (10) 
fiscal years provided applicable audits have been released or until three (3) calendar years after all related 
bonds are redeemed, whichever is later. 
 
INCIDENT REPORT FILES (Item #241) 
The District shall retain incident reports for five (5) anniversary years from the date of the incident. 
 
MINUTES:  OFFICIAL MEETINGS (PRELIMINARY/AUDIO RECORDINGS/VIDEO RECORDINGS 
(Item #4) 
The District shall retain audio recordings of board of supervisor meetings for five (5) calendar years after 
adoption of the official minutes. 
 
PROJECT FILES:  CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT (Item #136) 
The District shall retain the record copy of project files for projects funded with bonds for ten (10) fiscal 
years after completion of the project provided applicable audits have been released or until three (3) calendar 
years after all related bonds are redeemed, whichever is later. 
 
REAL PROPERTY RECORDS:  CONDEMNATION/DEMOLITION (Item #364) 
The District shall retain the record copy of project files for condemnation/demolition projects funded with 
bonds for five (5) anniversary years after final action or until three (3) calendar years after all related bonds 
are redeemed, whichever is later.  The record copy of deeds and easements shall be kept permanently. 
 
REAL PROPERTY RECORDS:  PROPERTY ACQUIRED (Item #172) 
The District shall retain the record copy of documents related to property acquisitions funded with bonds for 
three (3) fiscal years after final disposition of the property provided applicable audits have been released or 
until three (3) calendar years after all related bonds are redeemed, whichever is later.  The record copy of 
deeds and easements shall be kept permanently. 
 

Page 21



Verona Walk
Community Development District

   Financial Report For
June 2023

Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25


	Verona Walk Community Development District - July 20, 2023 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	May 18, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Public Hearing
	Proof of Publication
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-03 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Final Budget

	Consider Approval of Napier Sprinkler Proposal for Bridge 1
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-04 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Meeting Schedule
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-05 – Adopting a Records Retention Policy




